
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Curd. 

2. Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum. 

3. The Invocation will be provided by Pastor Chuck McCarthy, The Bible Church. 

4. Citizens to be heard. 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Park Board 
• One opening on the Street and Traffic Committee 
• One opening on the White Rose Cemetery Board 

7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 

  i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of February 3, 2025. 
  ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2025 
  iii. The Special Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2025. 
 
 b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments and Reappointments to Authorities, 

Boards, Commissions and Committees. 

i. Appointment of Mr. Dennis Halpin as the Visit Bartlesville Representative on the 
Bartlesville Film Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Curd. 

 
c. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amending the Budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
appropriating donation funds for the Golf Course Memorial Fund. 

 
d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Leases, MOU’s, and 

Proposals. 

i. Software License Agreement between Springshare, LLC and Bartlesville Public 
Library/City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2025 to assist staff in managing the 
library’s multiple meeting rooms and study spaces, and allow library users to 
request reservations online, in the amount of $2,999.00. 

ii. Contract renewal with BTC Broadband and Bartlesville Public Library/City of 
Bartlesville for internet services, paid for by Federal and State funding with zero 
cost to the Library/City. 

iii. Professional Services Contract with Brown Engineers for the high service pump 
variable frequency drive replacement at the Water Treatment Plant, in the amount 
of $40,000. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, March 3, 2025 
5:30 p.m. 

James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 



 
 
 
 
 

iv. OEM/911 Management Authority Grant Agreement between the State of 
Oklahoma and City of Bartlesville including all required documents to access and 
manage funds, for the purpose of updating the GIS Public Safety Mapping System. 

 
e. Approval of Retirement, Surplus and Donation 

i. Retire, surplus and donate K-9 Atlas to his police officer handler, Nicholas 
Gonzalez, allowed pursuant to Oklahoma State Title 70 3311: B. 

f. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 

i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – January 2025 

g. Receipt of Financials 

i. Interim financials for seven months ending January 31, 2025. 
 
 h. Receipt of Bids 

i. Bid No. 2024-2025-012 for Reconstruction of Yale Drive from E. Frank Phillips 
Blvd. to SE Adams Blvd. 

ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-013 for Madison Boulevard Reconstruction from Tuxedo to 
Water Tower. 

 
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-012 for Reconstruction of 

Yale Drive from E. Frank Phillips Blvd. to SE Adams Blvd. Presented by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-013 for Madison Boulevard 
Reconstruction from Tuxedo to Water Tower. Presented by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 

10. Update from the Unsheltered Homeless Task Force. Presented by Tom Gorman and Rachel 
Showler, Task Force Members. 

11. Discuss and take possible action on a request from the Bartlesville Development Authority 
to transfer approximately 15 acres in the Bartlesville Industrial Park, Section I, Tract 23, to 
the BDA for the construction of a 20,000 sq. ft. industrial speculative building. Presented 
by Chris Batchelder, Bartlesville Development Authority Vice President of Business 
Development. 

12. New Business 

13. City Manager and Staff Reports. 

14. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

15. Adjournment. 

The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public view at 
City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, February 27, 2025. 

Jason Muninger             /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO                          by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Cable Viewing on Sparklight: Channel 56 
 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official action can only be 
taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, strike, or continue any agenda 
item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a 
committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda 
items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. 
City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the 
City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if 
signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 31, 2024 and the Agenda was posted January 30, 2025 at 5:30 p.m.) 

City Council in attendance was Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Trevor Dorsey, and 
Councilmembers Tim Sherrick, Larry East and Aaron Kirkpatrick. 

City staff in attendance was Mike Bailey, City Manager; Laura Sanders, Assistant City 
Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk; Terry Lauritsen, 
Director of Water Utilities; Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering; Fire Chief H.C. Call; 
Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Robin Betts, Director of H.R.; Kiley 
Roberson, Director of the Library and History Museum; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry; 
Deputy Police Chiefs Troy Newell and Andrew Ward; and Elaine Banes, Executive 
Assistant. 

1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 
Curd at 5:30 p.m. 

2. Roll Call was conducted a quorum established. 

3. The Invocation will be provided by Joe Clark, Lighthouse Outreach Center. 

4. Citizens to be heard. 

Raymond Crow spoke about Item 9 and asked the City Council to vote in favor of closing 
the easement on his property. 

Tyler Vaclaw, Mark Spencer, Steve Hine and Brandon Wade spoke on Item 11. stating 
they were in support of changing the rules on Citizens to be Heard back to allowing only 
those who reside in the City limits. 

Vic Severin and Karla Severin spoke on Item 11 supporting everyone in Washington 
County to be able to speak at Citizens to be heard.  

Vic Severin and Joel Rabin spoke on Item 12 stating their opposition of approval of the 
Citizenship Grant due to the lack of proof of legality requirements. Mr. Rabin also 
commented on the comprehensive plan and drag queen shows. 

Marty Louthan, Fran Stallings, Sidney Brammer, Dr. Gopal, Brandon Wade, and Mary 
Maze spoke in favor of approving Item 12, the Citizenship Grant. 

 Vic Severin also spoke on Item 13 stating opposition of approval of the Up With Trees 
Agreement due to the placement of the trees being a potential traffic sight impairment. 

MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, February 3, 2025 
5:30 p.m. 

James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 

Agenda Item 7.a.i.



 
 
 
 
 

David Herrick spoke in regard to a Council member who may have violated the City’s 
Code of Conduct by attending a political party meeting instead of a scheduled City Council 
meeting. He encouraged the City Council to show mercy and encouraged the City Council 
member to choose humility in addressing the violation. 

Patty Kashek, Shena Hayes, and James Curavon spoke in favor of acceptance of drag 
queen shows and those in the LGBTQ+ community who live and work here. 

Rebecca Renfro stated her appreciation for the police department and how well they 
attend and conduct themselves at drag queen shows and other marches conducted in 
Bartlesville. She also applauded those who came to speak at the meeting. 

William Burton spoke about the right and privilege of the freedom of speech, and provided 
scripture. 

Mary Fowler read from a script using scripture as the format. 

Bob Fraser stated that he lives near the 13th green at Adams Golf Course and he wanted 
to commend Jonesplan and the City golf staff for their work on the renovations of the golf 
course. 

Kelly Banks spoke about an issue he had with a small claim court case against the City 
of Bartlesville that he lost. 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

 There were no announcements or proclamations. 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Street and Traffic Committee 

Mayor Curd read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City Committees. 
Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the City 
Manager’s Office. 

7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 

  i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of January 6, 2025. 
  ii. The Special Meeting Minutes for the City Council’s attendance of the  
   Bartlesville Police Department Flock Safety Camera Forum. 
  iii. The Special Meeting Minutes of January 27, 2025. 
 
 b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments and Reappointments to 

Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees. 

i. Appointment of Mr. Stephen Ivey as Ward 4 Representative to a three-year 
term on the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee at the 
recommendation of Councilman Kirkpatrick. 

ii. Appointment of Mr. Scott Ullrich and Mr. Joseph Glenn to three-year terms 
each on the Construction and Fire Code Appeals Board at the 
recommendation of Mayor Curd. 

iii. Reappointment of Mr. Bruce Kinkade and Mr. Verlyn Timmons to additional 
three-year terms each on the Sewer System Improvements Oversight 
Committee at the recommendation of Vice Mayor Dorsey. 

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 
 
 

iv. Reappointment of Mr. John Malcom Joyce, Mr. Kregg Cammack, and Ms. 
Margaret Anton to additional two-year terms each on the Bartlesville Adult 
Center Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Curd. 

v. Appointment of Ms. Dianne Crow, Ms. Kieran Andrews, and Ms. Laura 
Allen-Ward to two-year terms each on the Bartlesville Library Board at the 
recommendation of Mayor Curd. 

vi. Appointment of Ms. Kay Little to a three-year term on the Bartlesville Area 
History Museum at the recommendation of Councilman Kirkpatrick. 

 
c. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
appropriating grant funds in the amount of $598,714 from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport for the 
Airport Taxilane. 

ii. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
appropriating grant funds in the amount of $138,286 from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport for the 
Airport Taxilane. 

 
d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Leases, MOU’s, 

and Proposals. 

i. Lease T-Hangar Agreement for Unit 111 to David Day for aircraft storage at 
the Bartlesville Municipal Airport in the amount of $253 per month. 

ii. Contract with PioneerDream, Inc. for the development and production of 
three videos relating to water supply in the amount of $18,500. 

iii. Contract with Arbitrage Compliance Specialists for Arbitrage Compliance 
Services for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2025 in the amount of $11,450.00. 

iv. Service Agreement with Ark Wrecking for demolition and removal services 
in the amount of $72,800 for property located at 220 NW Virginia Ave. 

v. Agreement with Granicus to provide live web streaming for City meetings in 
the amount of $8,346 annually. 

vi. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Bartlesville Public School to 
remove the structure located at 703 S. Delaware Ave. 

 
e. Approval of Sale of Surplus Items at Public Auction 

i. Sale of surplus items of vehicles, equipment and miscellaneous items to be 
disposed of at public auction on March 8, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at the City of 
Bartlesville Operations Center, 1721 W. 5th Street, Bartlesville, OK 74003. 

f. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 

i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – December 2024  

g. Receipt of Financials 

i. Interim financials for six months ending December 31, 2024.  
 

Mayor Curd read the consent docket in full. Mr. Kirkpatrick removed Items 7.d.v. and 
Mayor Curd removed items 7.c.i. and ii. for further discussion. 

Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve the consent docket with the exception of Items 
7.c.i, 7.c.ii. and 7.d.v., seconded by Mr. Kirkpatrick. 



 
 
 
 
 

 Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

7.d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Leases, MOU’s, 
and Proposals. 

v. Agreement with Granicus to provide live web streaming for City meetings 
in the amount of $8,346 annually. 
 

  Mr. Kirkpatrick suggested YouTube as an option for streaming services for 
City Council and other City meetings. He stated that it is a free option and 
can be manned by dayworkers to index the meeting similar to the service 
Granicus provides. Mr. Bailey pointed out that Granicus specializes in 
hosting and has provided good service for us over the past several years. 
Mr. Kirkpatrick was not opposed to approving the contract for a year and 
asked staff to research the YouTube option. 

Mr. Kirkpatrick moved to approve Item 7.d.v., seconded by Mr. East. 

Voting Aye: Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mayor 
 Curd 

Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

  

7.c. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
appropriating grant funds in the amount of $598,714 from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport for the 
Airport Taxilane. 

ii. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
appropriating grant funds in the amount of $138,286 from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport for the 
Airport Taxilane. 

 
Mayor Curd asked Mr. Siemers and Mr. Richardson to provide information on the 
item. Using a PowerPoint, Mr. Siemers reported on the new taxilanes showing the 
alignment at the airport and how they will be used. He provided the financial and 
funding information as well.                                                                                      
 
Mayor Curd moved to approve Items 7.c.i. and 7.c.ii., seconded by Vice Mayor 
Dorsey. 

  Voting Aye: Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mayor  
    Curd 
  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion:  Passed 

 
8. Discuss and take action regarding Bartlesville’s long-term water supply options. 

Presented by Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities.  



 
 
 
 
 

 Mr. Lauritsen reported that in September 2023, the Water Resources Committee decided 
to further investigate the water supply options at Hulah Lake, Copan Lake, the Ada-
Vamoosa Aquifer and Kaw Lake.  The goal is to add between 10 to 16 million gallons per 
day (MGD) of water to secure the City’s water supply for the next 75 to 100 years.  On 
January 6, 2025, the City Council received an update on these 4 options, which are 
summarized below. 

Hulah Lake: 

• Reallocate up to 10% of the lake's flood control storage to water supply, as 
recommended by a 2007 Planning Assistance to States Study conducted by the US 
Army Corps of Engineers (COE). This 10% reallocation would provide an additional 
10 million gallons of water per day (MGD). 

• Requires a reallocation study by the COE and must be authorized and funded by 
Congress. 

o The anticipated cost of the study is $3MM and requires a 50/50 cost share. 

o The quickest legislative route will be through the next Water Resource 
Development Act (WRDA) set to be introduced in 2026. Study will take between 
3 to 6 years to complete. 

• The estimated cost to secure the converted storage, including 
environmental/recreation mitigation, is $12.5MM.  This pricing assumes storage costs 
based on preferred rates, which will require federal legislation, and the mitigation costs 
are conceptual, since these will be derived through the reallocation study. 

o The estimated water rate impact for this option (assuming 6% interest rate and 30-
year financing) will increase the average residential water bill by approximately $8 
per month. 

Copan Lake – Two items are being investigated. 

• Secure the remaining 2 MGD of water storage that is currently reserved for the 
Town of Copan.  Federal legislation was approved in 2022 and 2024 that facilitates 
the Town of Copan being able to release these reserved rights and Bartlesville 
purchasing these rights at a preferred rate. 

o The Town of Copan’s cost to purchase these reserved storage rights is 
approximately $12MM.  With the federal legislation, the City of Bartlesville 
can purchase these reserved storage rights (assuming the Town of Copan 
releases them) for $550k. 

o City staff is currently working with Copan officials to negotiate an agreement 
pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) signed by Copan’s 
mayor in 2021.  This MOU requires Bartlesville to pay Copan to release the 
reserved rights, and then Copan will have the ability to sublease these rights 
back at the rate that Bartlesville paid.  Thus, both communities can secure 
additional water rights at a fraction of the cost. 

o The $550k will not have an impact to current water rates. 

• The other item being investigated is the option, recommended by a 2007 Planning 
Assistance to States Study conducted by the COE, to reallocate up to 10% of the 



 
 
 
 
 

lake’s flood control storage to water supply.  10% reallocation will provide an 
additional 10.5 million gallons of water per day. 

o Unfortunately, reallocation is not possible due to the lake’s current Dam 
Safety Action Classification (DSAC) rating, which is 3. 

o Any effort to pursue reallocation at Copan Lake will first require a re-
assessment of the DSAC score that will need to be initiated through federal 
legislation.  Even if legislation is approved for this re-assessment, it is 
unlikely that the score will change without some sort of structural 
improvement or downstream mitigation.  The specific parameters that have 
influenced the DSAC score are unknown and will require significant time 
and effort to coordinate with the COE to derive the parameters influencing 
this score to determine options to improve the rating. 

Ada-Vamoosa Aquifer – This is a major aquifer located in central Osage County close 
to the City owned Hudson Lake.    

• The aquifer has limited yield capabilities.  25 wells will produce a maximum of 1.4 
million gallons of water per day and requires a water lease over 700 acres of land. 

• The estimated cost for the well field, pump stations and pipelines to get this water 
to Hudson Lake is $12.8MM. 

o The estimated water rate impact for this option (assuming 6% interest rate 
and 30-year financing) will increase the average residential water bill by 
approximately $8 per month. 

o A separate study is needed to investigate the feasibility of securing these 
water leases.  In addition, several test wells will need to be installed to 
confirm yield and model the impacts of a well field.  The cost of these items 
will be between $600k to $1MM. 

Kaw Lake-8 million gallons of water per day are available at Kaw Lake.  The water is 
compatible with the City’s current treatment process. 

• The most economical option for a pump station and pipeline to convey 14 million 
gallons of water per day to Hudson Lake will cost $252,534,089. 

• The estimated water rate impact for this option (assuming 6%interest rate and 30-
year financing) will increase the average residential water bill by approximately 
$160 per month. 

On January 28, 2025, the Water Resource Committee (WRC) considered the options and 
unanimously recommended the following actions: 

• Pursue flood control reallocation at Hulah Lake through the next Water Resource 
Development Act, which will be available in 2026. 

 • Secure the reserved storage rights at Copan Lake made available through recent 
legislation, with staff continuing to work with the Town of Copan to finalize an 
agreement for this purchase. 

• Develop a contingency plan to access potable water from Tulsa, Colinsville and/or 
Skiatook in the event of an emergency. 



 
 
 
 
 

Due to uncertainties around water rights, yield, and investigation costs, the WRC does 
not recommend proceeding with the Ada Vamoosa aquifer at this time.   

For Kaw Lake, the WRC advises exploring federal grant opportunities and maintaining 
communication with the Osage Nation to explore potential partnerships that could help 
offset costs.  If no substantial partnership, grant, or alternative funding opportunity 
materializes, the WRC advises against moving forward with Kaw Lake at this time. 

Discussion covered appreciation to City staff, the Water Resources Committee and the 
State and Federal legislators for their assistance; that the costs of the recommended 
options would also affect rural water carrier rates to increase as well as those who live in 
Bartlesville; how Bartlesville is not and will not be a water provider to Copan residents; 
how Enid had to increase sales tax and water rates in order to secure water from Kaw 
Lake; how Enid had no other options for affordable, potable water but to draw from Kaw 
Lake; and flood reallocation and how it works. 

Mr. Kirkpatrick moved to approve the Water Resources Committee recommendations as 
presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 

Mr. East inquired as to the contingency plan recommendation to access potable water 
from Tulsa, Collinsville and/or Skiatook. Mr. Lauritsen stated that he would begin the 
process of securing agreements with each of them. 

 Voting Aye: Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

9. Discuss and take possible action on a request by Raymond Crow to close a portion 
of a 20-foot-wide utility easement located on the south side of Lot 1, Block 4, 
Corrected Plan for Covington Park, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. 
Presented by Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering. 

 Mr. Siemers reported that this item was tabled at the October 7, 2024 City Council 
meeting at the request of Councilman Roszel.  The public hearing was held with no 
citizens appearing to speak. The staff recommendation was to deny the request because 
PSO did not concur with the closure. It was unclear based upon the utility locate called in 
by the applicant prior to submitting the application. There are no PSO lines identified in 
the easement located on the property, though the PSO maps showed their facilities being 
present. There is also a 20’ wide easement on the adjacent property, so the line could 
potentially be located within that easement instead of the one in question. Then 
Councilmember Roszel made the motion to table the item and get clarification from PSO 
to see if they had facilities in the easement and if not, would they be willing to concur with 
the request to close the north half of the easement.  Staff reached out to PSO asking 
them to verify their facilities in the easement and potentially reconsider the request.  While 
PSO does not have facilities in that easement, it appears they do in the adjacent 
easement. Since the closure request is for a new structure and not an existing 
encroachment, they do not wish to concur with the closure to keep options open for future 
expansion and ingress/egress to maintain their facilities. PSO feels the home owner 
should have been aware of the easement at the time of purchase. The request was again 
discussed at the November 4, 2024 City Council meeting.  At that meeting, the applicant 
reported that a similar easement had been previously vacated in the same subdivision.  
Council requested staff to look into other easements being closed in the subdivision and 
return with information at a later date. Staff revisited easement closing records and there 



 
 
 
 
 

were two other locations within Covington Park that had been closed, one at 5603 
Nottingham Place and one at 2718 Waterford Court.  The 5603 Nottingham Place closed 
the exact same portion of easement on a different block with half of the rear easement 
closed similar to the current request. The only explanation staff has for how utility 
companies have responded to these requests by homeowners is a change in the review 
and recommendation process within PSO.                                                                          
 
A brief discussion covered any legal liability the City might encounter by approving the 
request; how fiber companies are not using the easements on the applicant’s street due 
to heavy rock presence; and how if PSO was concerned about the item, a representative 
would be present to uphold their position.                                                                           
 
Mr. East moved to approve and adopt the Ordinance required to close the easement as 
presented, seconded by Mr. Kirkpatrick. 

 Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

Mayor Curd opened up Citizens to be Heard on Items 11, 12 and 13. 

 Dianne Crow spoke on Item 11 and is in favor of changing the rules to Bartlesville 
residents only speaking at Citzens to be Heard. 

Bill Peyton, Joel Rabin, and Sarah Burnett spoke on Item 11 and how they feels that 
residents of Washington County should be allowed to speak in the Citizens to be Heard 
portion of the meetings. 

Noah Meadows and Anne Franklin spoke about how/what determines who is a resident 
of Bartlesville. There are those who have a Bartlesville address, and work and shop in 
Bartlesville, but do not live within the city limits, and they feel they should be able to speak 
at City Council meetings.  

Dianne Crow, Noah Meadows Anne Franklin, Irina Meade, Gentry Meade, Janet Cravens, 
Yeonju Park, Karen Kerr-McGrew, Joni White, Kelly Orta, Cheryl Dorris, Abigail 
Rodriguez, Ivonne Leap, and Susan Lauffer stated their support of approving the Item 12 
Citizenship Grant as originally presented to the City Council. 

 Bill Peyton and Sarah Burnett spoke against approving Item 12 Citizenship Grant; Bill 
Peyton also stated how he opposes drag queen shows. 

Tyler Vaclaw spoke in support of Item 13 the Up with Trees agreement and grant 
supporting it from Phillips 66.  

10. Discuss and take possible action to suspend the Council Meeting Rules related to 
reconsideration of previous agenda items as per Rosenberg’s Rules of Order to 
allow for reconsideration of items previously considered by Council on 12/2/24 and 
1/6/25, identified in this agenda as Items 11, 12, and 13. Presented by Councilman 
East.  

 Councilman East reported that he is requesting only items 12 and 13 to be included in the 
suspension of the meeting rules. He stated that he changed his position on 
reconsideration of Item 11. 

A brief discussion ensued regarding Mr. East’s change of mind regarding Item 11. 



 
 
 
 
 

Mr. East moved to suspend the Council Meeting Rules for Items 12, and 13 as presented, 
seconded by Mr. Sherrick. 

 Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

11. Discuss and take possible action to reconsider the amendment to the Council 
Rules of Order that was originally approved by the Council on 12/2/24 relating to 
Citizens to be Heard. Presented by Mayor Curd.  

 Mayor Curd reported that since Mr. East did not include Item 11 in his motion to 
reconsider, there will be no action on this item. 

12. Discuss and take possible action to reconsider the ODL Citizenship Grant that was 
originally denied by the Council on 1/6/25. Presented by Mr. East.  

 Mr. East reported that upon additional reflection and information he wanted the item 
reopened and reconsidered. 

Mr. East moved to reconsider approval of the ODL Citizenship Grant, seconded by Vice 
Mayor Dorsey. 

Discussion ensued with Mr. Sherrick stating he remained opposed to the approval citing 
fiduciary responsibility, referring to Section 5A.; with Mr. Sherrick explaining upon being 
questioned by Vice Mayor Dorsey, that when he speaks in the plural “we” that he means 
“he”; and that City Attorney Kane reported that he met with the Oklahoma Department of 
Library Director this morning who stated that Bartlesville is and has always been 
compliant with the law. Mr. Sherrick then stated with that information, he would vote to 
approve the grant. 

 Voting Aye: Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

Mayor Curd moved to approve the ODL Citizenship Grant as originally presented, 
seconded by Mr. Kirkpatrick. 

 Voting Aye: Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

13. Discuss and take possible action to reconsider an agreement with Up with Trees 
that was originally delayed by the City Council on 1/6/25. Presented by Vice Mayor 
Dorsey.  

Vice Mayor Dorsey stated his appreciation to Phillips 66 for their donation to assist 
financially to replace the trees that were damaged in the May 2024 tornado event. He 
added that the residents who lived west of the area are appreciative to have the trees 
replaced as they performed as a buffer between the neighborhood and the commercial 
businesses to the east. 

Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to reconsider the Up With Trees Agreement, seconded by Mr. 
East. 



 
 
 
 
 

 Voting Aye: Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve the Up With Trees Agreement as originally 
presented, seconded by Mr. East. 

 Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

14. Discuss and take possible action to reaffirm the City’s policy regarding City 
Council appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees, and 
to approve City Council appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions and 
Committees. Presented by Mayor Curd.  

Mayor Curd reported that a discussion of appointments was held at the January 27, 2025 
workshop. Mr. Bailey provided a worksheet with each appointment as follows. 
 
Adams Golf Course Operating Committee – Vice Mayor Dorsey 
Adult Center Trust Authority – N/A 
Ambulance Commission – N/A 
Bartlesville Convention & Visitor’s Bureau (Visitor Inc.) – Vice Mayor Dorsey and Mr. 
Kirkpatrick 
Bartlesville Development Authority – Mayor Curd and Vice Mayor Dorsey 
Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority – Mr. East 
Bartlesville Film Authority – Mayor Curd 
Board of Adjustment – N/A 
City Council – All City Council members 
City Planning Commission – Mr. Kirkpatrick 
Community Center Trust Authority – Mr. Sherrick 
Construction and Fire Code Appeals Board – N/A 
Downtown Landscape Task Force – Mayor Curd and Mr. Kirkpatrick (Wards 3 and 4 
required) 
Employee Advisory Committee – N/A 
History Museum Trust Authority – Mr. Sherrick 
Keep Bartlesville Beautiful – Mr. Kirkpatrick 
Library Board - NA 
Library Trust Authority – Mr. East 
Park Board – Vice Mayor Curd 
Sewer System Improvement Oversight Committee – Vice Mayor Dorsey 
Street and Traffic Committee – Mr. East 
Tax Incentive District Review Committee – Vice Mayor Dorsey 
Tower Green Design Committee – Mayor Curd and Mr. Sherrick 
Transportation Committee Mr. Sherrick and Mr. East 
Unsheltered Homeless Task Force – Mr. Kirkpatrick and Mr. East 
Water Resources Committee – Mayor Curd and Mr. Kirkpatrick 
White Rose Cemetery Board - N/A 

Mr. East moved to reaffirm the City’s policy and to approve the Council appointments as 
presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 



 
 
 
 
 

 Voting Aye: Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

15. New Business 

 There was no new business to discuss. 

16. City Manager and Staff Reports. 

 Mr. Bailey provided the dates and topics of upcoming City Council workshops. 

17. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 Mr. East inquired as to how the management of Price Fields is coming along and how to 
expedite the process. Mr. Bailey reported that RFQ’s will be accepted through February 
6. At that time, they will be reviewed and a recommendation will be brought before the 
City Council. It is possible that a special meeting may be called to expedite the process 
and get the season started. 

 Mr. Kirkpatrick reported that the Unsheltered Homeless Task Force had their first meeting 
on January 31 and will be meeting twice a month. A report will be brought before the City 
Council at the regular monthly meeting.  

 Vice Mayor Dorsey thanked everyone for their attendance and feedback in the meeting 
tonight since the Council represents everyone, not just those in their wards. 

 Mayor Curd thanked staff for all of the research that was required for the items on the 
agenda. He added that although public comment is not required, he is proud that the 
Bartlesville City Council has always provided for it. 

18. There being no further business to address, Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 
9:10 p.m. 

 

                                                                  
        James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 

 

                                           
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE   
SPECIAL MEETING  

OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL  

 
Friday, February 21, 2025 

Noon 
 

Mayor James S. Curd, Jr. 
918-338-4282 

 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
MINUTES 

The Notice of Meeting and Agenda was posted at 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, February 19, 2025. 
 

City Council attending were Mayor James S. Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Trevor Dorsey, Councilmembers, 
Aaron Kirkpatrick, Larry East and Tim Sherrick. 
 
City staff in attendance were Mike Bailey, City Manager, Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager, 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk, Chief Communications Officer Kelli Williams, Community 
Development Director Larry Curtis; Kiley Roberson, Library and Museum Director; Deputy Police 
Chief Troy Newell; Matt McCollough, IT Director; and Executive Assistant Elaine Banes. 
  
1. Mayor Curd called the Special Meeting of the Bartlesville City Council to order at 12:00 

p.m. 
 

2. Roll call was held and a quorum established. 
 

3. The invocation was provided by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 
LaChelle Griffin commented on City Council meetings should be held at a time that the public 
can attend. She also commented on City Council members and the City Manager entering the 
room together at the same time.  
 

5. Discussion and possible action to approve an agreement between the City of Bartlesville 
and Arrowhead, LLC for the management of Price and Artunoff Fields. Presented by Mike 
Bailey, City Manager. 
 
Mr. Bailey reported that an updated agreement had been distributed that differed from the one 
provided previously in the packet. He explained that the changes were made after Arrowhead 
LLC’s legal review, and stated that the changes were not substantive. He reported that five 
RFQ’s had been received and reviewed by the ad hoc committee formed from City staff and two 
Council members. The ad hoc committee ranked Arrowhead first out of all submissions. He 
reviewed the agreement stating the lease is a three-year lease including information regarding 
rent, expenses and other fees; list of landlord responsibilities; shared maintenance between the 
City and Arrowhead; and other relevant aspects of the agreement. He concluded that the City 
Attorney had reviewed and approved the agreement. 
 
Discussion covered appreciation of organizations who provided RFQ’s for consideration; for 
Arrowhead, their well prepared proposal and existing leadership in the community; for the five 
organizations, four of them being local organizations who stepped up and provided RFQ’s; how 

Agenda Item 7.a.ii.



 
 
 

the RFQ’s were scored by the ad hoc committee; how RFQ’s are conducted; and that the 
Artunoff Fields will be available for adult softball leagues as a lessor of Arrowhead. Chris Jones 
with Arrowhead reported that their organization will not only provide competitive teams and 
tournaments but will also maintain a recreation league. He also reported that they will work with 
employees of 4F Sports to maintain continuity in the program, and to provide good field 
maintenance. Arrowhead will be meeting today at 2 to discuss registration plans and will begin 
taking registration as soon as Monday. It was agreed by Mr. Bailey and the City Council that 
they felt Arrowhead will provide a good program, good leadership, and are looking forward to a 
successful partnership. 
 
Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve the Agreement as presented, seconded by Mr. East. 
 
Ayes:  Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd. 
Nays:  None 
Motion: Passed 
 

6. There being no further business to address, Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 12:33 
p.m. 

 
 
 

                                                      
James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 

 
 
                                                 
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING  

OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL  

 
Monday, February 24, 2025 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor James S. Curd, Jr. 
918-338-4282 

 

First Floor Conference Room, City Hall 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
MINUTES 

The Notice of Meeting and Agenda was posted at 5:30 P.m., Thursday, February 20, 2025. 
 

City Council attending were Mayor James S. Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Trevor Dorsey, Councilmembers, 
Aaron Kirkpatrick, Larry East and Tim Sherrick. 
 
City staff in attendance were Mike Bailey, City Manager, Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager, 
City Attorney Jess Kane, Matt McCollough, IT Director; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry; Deputy Police 
Chiefs Troy Newell and Andrew Ward; Captain Travis Martinez; Captain Elkins; and Executive 
Assistant Elaine Banes. 
  
1. Mayor Curd called the Special Workshop Meeting of the Bartlesville City Council to order 

at 5:30 p.m. 
 

2. Roll call was held and a quorum established. 
 

3. The Invocation was provided by Mr. Kirkpatrick. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 
Roger Box, Gary Kilpatrick, Eddie Collins, Joshua Lock, Travis Perry, Vic Severin, Karla Severin, 
Chelle Griffin, Dale Earhart, and Richard Ely all spoke opposing the use of the Flock Camera 
System citing their belief it is infringing on the 4th Amendment, concerns regarding data storage, 
and concerns about data sharing. Tyler Vaclaw felt the workshop on this topic should have been 
held prior to approving the agreement, and encouraged the City Council to start over and re-
address the agreement with Flock Camera System. Mr. Collins distributed a handout and asked 
that it be attached to the minutes. 
 
Joel Rabin stated that in his opinion the agenda language was not clear per the Oklahoma Open 
Meeting Act for Item 6. He added that he feels discussion on Item 6 should be held at this 
meeting and should be held during a regular meeting. 
 
Stuart Werber, Barry Balzer, Mark Keesling, and Bob Pomeroy all spoke in favor of the use of 
the Flock Camera System. 
 

5. Discussion on Flock Camera Systems. 
 
Mr. Kirkpatrick provided a PowerPoint with discussion points. Discussion ensued with Mr. East 
stating that he would still like additional information on how the technology works citing concerns 
about the length of time data is stored; and if the data is protected. Additional discussion covered 
if the data is shared with another city, what is the guarantee other cities will not share the data; 

Agenda Item 7.a.iii.



 
 
 

and whether the use of the Flock Camera System is ethical. Mayor Curd stated he felt the use 
is ethical, Mr. Sherrick stated that he felt the use of the system is unethical; Mr. East stated that 
if the data or a citizen’s rights are breached, then use is unethical; Vice Mayor Dorsey feels that 
the use of the system is ethical as does Mr. Kirkpatrick. Discussion also covered how Sheriff 
Scott Owen and the Washington County Commissioners rescinded their agreement with Flock, 
and turnpike cameras and how their data is stored and accessed is determined by State rules. 
 
Mr. Kirkpatrick asked the question of Council if they felt the system was legal.  City Attorney 
Kane provided information regarding legality, which at this time, in the 10th Circuit, use of Flock 
cameras is legal and usage does not violate the 4th amendment. He brought information forward 
about a case in Norfolk, Virginia about the legality of the use of the system citing infringement of 
rights, and how the case is still in early stages. Vice Mayor Dorsey stated that he has contacted 
the State Attorney General for his opinion but has not received a response to-date. Mr. Bailey 
added that Will Drake, Washington County District Attorney, supports the use of the system, and 
added information that certain types of cameras were initially installed for insurance laws. In 
response to comments regarding the Oklahoma Department of Transportation (ODOT) telling 
the City to remove the Flock cameras from their right-of-ways, Mr. Bailey stated that as soon as 
the City was notified that ODOT did not approve for them to be placed in their right-of-ways, they 
were moved. He and Mr. Kane both stated it is not because ODOT thinks the cameras are illegal 
that they wanted them moved but because they are very specific about what is approved to be 
placed in their right-of-ways. Additional discussion covered that Native American Tribes have 
and use their own cameras; whether the system been used in criminal cases in the local courts; 
how courts do not provide advisory opinions should they be asked for one; and how the Attorney 
General can provide advisory opinion which has been requested by Vice Mayor Dorsey. When 
queried, Mr. East stated that with the information Mr. Kane provided, the use of system is not 
illegal, but he still has concerns about data storage time limits; Mr. Sherrick stated that a picture 
of a tag may not go against Constitutional rights, but use of the data could breach a citizen’s 
rights; Mr. Kirkpatrick stated that he did not feel use of the system is illegal but remains interested 
in the findings of the Norfolk, Virginia case. Mr. Sherrick offered that whether the City should use 
the Flock Camera System should possibly be decided by a vote of the people. Discussion 
covered how citizens bringing forward a vote initiative is set out in the City’s charter; how such 
an initiative would be worded on a ballot; and that it was generally agreed by the Council to have 
Mr. Bailey and Mr. Kane research the Charter and State laws and provide the initiative 
information to the Council.  
 

6. Discussion on Council Meeting Rules. 
 
Mr. Bailey reviewed information that he had researched and covered whether or not to keep 
public comment as one item or as individual opportunities on each agenda item; allowing public 
comment in workshops; keeping public comment on all City Authorities, Boards, Commissions, 
Committees;  rules of decorum for speakers and audience members; time limits on public 
comments; limiting public comments to citizens who live within the City limits or keeping a 
county-wide speaking rule; order of agenda items; and the maximum limit of a Council meeting.  
 
Discussion between the Council covered how they wanted to keep public comment on all City 
agendas, and for Mr. Bailey to provide them with scenarios regarding public comment.  
 
Decorum for speakers and audience members are written on the sign-up sheet, Mr. Sherrick 
pointed out, and he feels a change is unnecessary. The Mayor commented that he would 
appreciate more specific rules for decorum, as well as a change in the time length of public 
comment from 15 minutes to a suggested 30 minutes.  
 



 
 
 

Vice Mayor Dorsey has heard from citizens from his ward as well as the other wards, who do 
not approve of allowing residents of the County to be able to speak during public comment; and 
how Mr. Sherrick disagrees with limiting public comments to citizens who live inside the city 
limits. He added that if County residents could not speak at Council meetings, then volunteers 
who sit on the City’s committees who are residents of the County and not within city limits should 
be removed from serving. Mr. Kane responded that he is contacted by staff liaisons occasionally 
requesting his opinion if a volunteer can serve based on where they live. He researches the 
specific committee’s resolution, ordinance or bylaws forming the committee to find the 
membership requirements and provide his opinion.  
 
Regarding the order of items placed on the agenda, Mr. Bailey reported that the Oklahoma 
Municipal League provides the format and order which is generally used Statewide. Mr. 
Kirkpatrick stated he preferred that items that may draw a larger crowd of citizens or may be 
controversial, be listed closer to the top of the agenda.  
 
A short discussion covered limiting the length of a Council meeting and how once the time limit 
is reached, items not acted upon would be brought forward at the next regular Council meeting, 
or the meeting could continue depending on how many items are left to discuss. The decision 
could be made by the Council whether to end at the allotted time or to continue. 
 
Mr. Bailey stated that he would take the Council’s discussion and prepare different scenario’s 
and provide to them for their consideration. 
 

7. There being no further business to address, Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 8:23 
p.m. 
 

 
 
 

                                                 
James. S. Curd, Jr. 

 
 
                                        
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



Agenda Item 7.b.i.





7.c.i.





Agenda Item _ 
March 3, 2025 

Prepared by Kiley N. Roberson 
Library 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Discuss and take action to approve the Software License Agreement between Springshare, LLC 

and Bartlesville Public Library/ City of Bartlesville for FY2025.

Attachments: Software License Agreement

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

The Library is in need of a new meeting room reservation / booking solution. The current 

service is obsolete and unreliable, with minimal functionality. The new service is LibCal by 

Springshare, which will allow staff to manage the library's multiple meeting rooms and study 

spaces, and will allow library users to request reservations online.

This service is an affordable cloud-based solution that allows all staff to access the dashboard 

and manage meeting room reservations.

III. BUDGET IMPACT

The subscription costs $2,999 will be paid out of the library's 101 budget.

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Library staff recommends approval of the Springshare agreement.

7.d.i.







7.d.ii.









1 
 

 

Agenda Item ___ 
                February 26, 2025 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities 
 

 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of amendment #1 to the professional service contract with Brown 
Engineers for the high service pump variable frequency drive replacement at the 
water treatment plant. 

Attachments: 
Amendment #1 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

One of the capital projects approved this fiscal year through the Water Plant Capital 
Reserve Fund is to replace the variable frequency drives for the high service pumps.  
The water plant has five high service pumps that move water from the treatment 
plant into the distribution system – each can pump up to 10 million gallons of water 
per day.  Two of these high service pumps have variable frequency drives (VFD) for 
the motor control, which allow the pumps to be regulated to vary the flow based on 
demand.  These existing VFD’s were installed in 2006 with the original plant 
construction and repair parts can no longer be secured for these models.  In 
September 2024, Council approved a contract with Brown Engineers for the design 
of these drives.  The project is currently open for bidding and due to the highly 
specialized nature of this work, staff would like to engage Brown Engineers for the 
bid and construction phases of the project.  Services include: contractor 
qualification, bid review and recommendation; submittal review and approval; 
construction observation, testing and drive commissioning.  The amendment, which 
is attached, outlines the scope of the services, which will be billed hourly as needed.  
The estimated cost of these services is $40,000.   

 
III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the professional services will be through the Water Plant Capital Reserve 
Fund, which has $400,000 budgeted for this project.  The proposed amendment 
($40,000) is within the available budget for the project. 

 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract amendment with Brown 
Engineers for the high service pump variable frequency drive replacement at the water 
treatment plant. 

7.d.iii.



17200 Chenal Pkwy. Suite 300, PMB 324 
Little Rock, Arkansas 72223 

501-448-0100 
www.BrownEngineers.net 

 
 

 
  

February 26, 2025 
 
Mr. Terry Lauritsen, PE 
Director of Water Utilities 
401 South Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
Re: WTP High Service Pump VFD Replacement 
 Electrical Engineering Services – AMENDMENT #1 
  
Dear Terry: 
 
We are pleased to propose our services for the construction phase of the above referenced 
project.   This letter will describe our proposed scope of services, performance schedule, and 
payment terms. 
 
Scope of Services – Construction Phase Services 
The scope of our services will include electrical engineering design services to accomplish the 
following:  
 

Ø Bidding Phase 
o Review of received bids 
o Review of contractors’ qualifications 
o Providing a certified bid tab 
o Providing a Recommendation of Award 

Ø Submittal Phase 
o Submittal review 

Ø Installation Phase 
o Protective Relay Programming, Testing, and Commissioning Phase 

§ Kickoff meeting for relay commissioning 
§ Testing Contractor qualifications review 
§ Protective relay explanatory narrative review 
§ Protective relay settings file review 
§ Protective relay testing plan 
§ Protective relay programming and testing observation 
§ Protective relay completed testing plan and as-left settings files review 
§ VFD Testing observation 
§ VFD completed test records review 
§ Protective relay startup and commissioning services observation 
§ Protective relay notification of problems found review 
§ Protective relay and VFD programming, testing, and commissioning final 

review 
 
 



  

Items excluded 
 Construction Administration 

  
Items Furnished by Bartlesville 

 Project bidding services. 
 

Engineering services will be performed on an “on-call” basis.   For the engineering services 
listed above we propose to work for the fee below.  Invoices will be prepared monthly.  Invoices 
are due upon receipt.  
 

  Fee 
Construction Phase (Hourly) $40,000 (estimated) 

 
Any additional services beyond the scope of work specifically listed herein would be performed 
as requested based on current hourly rates plus reimbursable expenses such as printing and 
parking, at a direct rate or as a negotiated lump sum agreement.   
 
General Considerations 
The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished 
under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the profession 
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.  Engineer 
makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement, in connection with Engineer’s  
services.  Engineer and its consultants may use or rely upon the design services of others, 
including but not limited to contractors, manufacturers, and suppliers.   
 
Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or 
supplier or any of contractor’s agents or employees or any other persons (except Engineer’s own 
employees) at the Project site or otherwise furnishing or performing any construction work; or 
for any decision made on interpretations or clarifications of the construction contract given by 
Owner without consultation and advice of Engineer.   
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other any and 
all claims for consequential damages arising out of or resulting from the Project, and (2) agree that 
the scope of the Engineer’s total liability under this Agreement shall be limited to the scope of 
Professional Design Services provided.   
Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing below.  Your acceptance of this 
proposal indicates authority to proceed with the work.   
  



  

 
If you have any questions, please give us a call. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
BROWN ENGINEERS, LLC   
 

 
 
Bruce Brown, P.E.  
Principal 
 
 
 
Accepted for City of Bartlesville:  
 
 
_______________________             ________________ 
Name      Date 
 

 



Agenda Item 7.d.iv.



























Agenda Item ___ 
March 3, 2025 

Prepared by Deputy Chief Troy Newell 
Police Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take possible action to retire, surplus, and donate K-9 Atlas to his police officer 
handler, Nicholas Gonzalez. 

 
 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 

The Bartlesville Police Department requests to retire, surplus, and donate K-9 Atlas to his 
police officer handler, Nicholas Gonzalez. This is standard practice in law enforcement due 
to the bond between the handler, their families, and their assigned canine partners.  
Oklahoma Statue Title 70 3311: B states, “Upon retiring the dog from the service it was 
certified to perform, the law enforcement department that handled the dog shall retain 
possession of the dog. The handler shall have first option of adopting the dog. If that option 
is not exercised, the law enforcement department shall provide for its adoption. Once 
adopted the dog shall not be placed back into active service”.  
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that the Council review and approve the retirement, surplus, and donation of 
K-9 Atlas to his police officer handler, Nicholas Gonzalez. 
 
 
 

7.e.i.



1 Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. HR 10/23 100%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program.

HR 10/23 100%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 100%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 100%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 100%

1 Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. Admin 10/23 100% Committee has met and is gathering data.

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for 
uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 100%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we 
can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 100%
Selected alternative solutions due to usability 
issues with 311 and EAM.

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to 
improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 03/25 90%
Polishing final version and preparing to train 
staff. Rollout slightly delayed.

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 100%
Changed the date to match up with our fiscal 
year.  Original completion date was 4/24.

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part 
of a larger survey plan.

CCO 04/24 90% Began Polco implementation

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 100%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 100%

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:
a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 100%

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JANUARY 2025

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

1 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JANUARY 2025

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 
and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 100%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the budget 
every year. 

A&F 10/23 100%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for 
major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the 
future. 

A&F 07/25 50%
Will contact Crawford & Assoc.  If they are 
unable to provide service, then implementation 
may be delayed.

3
City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and 
future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council 
workshop to discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 100%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, 
and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, 
wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning 
improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what data 
needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 100% Software selected and implementation began.

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng

i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 90%
Most data collected but storm drain may require 
comprehensive study.

ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 90% Data collected but needs to be integrated.

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng
a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI in 
5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months.

Eng 06/23 100%

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted 
best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm Dev

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. Comm Dev 06/23 100%

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

2 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JANUARY 2025

b Present recommendations to the Council Comm Dev 10/24 100%
Council adopted plan and opened a period for 
additional public comment.

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 

Comm Dev 06/25 12%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic 
development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best 
to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 100%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 100%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 100% Meetings have been conducted.

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants 
that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 25%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 100%

1 Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. Library 01/24 100%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2 Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) Library 01/25 0%
This goal will be updated in the next version of 
the NEXT plan

1
As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in 
Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and 
parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Comm Dev 10/24 100% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan.

CD/S&T 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan CD/S&T 10/24 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation systems.

3 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - JANUARY 2025

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including 
destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

PW/PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined with 
motion and smoke detectors

Pub Works 04/24 100% 10 of 10 bathrooms installed

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 100%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, arson, 
trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 100%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 
improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, 
adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/PW 07/23 100% KBB established.

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. CD/PW 01/24 100%
b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). CD/PW 04/24 100%
c Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. CD/PW 10/24 100%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 100%
4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App Comm Dev 04/24 100%
5 Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. Pub Works 07/23 100%

1 Child Care: Admin

a Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. Admin 04/24 100%
New task force established and meeting 
regularly.

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 
facilities.

Admin 100%
Proposed regulations will be presented to 
Council on 10/7/24

2 Housing: Comm Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing stock 
by price level.

Comm Dev 04/24 100%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 
Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/CD 04/24 100%

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 
handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to better understand our homeless 
population, how many homeless are in Bartlesville, and why they are here.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others 

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

EMERGING ISSUES

4 of 4



Agenda Item ___ 
February 20, 2025 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the seven months ending January 31, 2025.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for January 31, 2025 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for January 2025; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for January 31, 2025. 

7.g.i.



Ward 1 - Tim Sherrick
Ward 2 - Larry East
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Mayor
Ward 4 - Aaron Kirkpatrick
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey, Vice Mayor

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Finance Supervisor

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Seven Months Ended January 31, 2025

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

56.0%

58.0%

60.0%

62.0%

64.0%

66.0%

68.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

52.0%

54.0%

56.0%

58.0%

60.0%

62.0%

64.0%

66.0%

 -
 500,000

 1,000,000
 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000
 3,500,000
 4,000,000
 4,500,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%

 5,400,000
 5,600,000
 5,800,000
 6,000,000
 6,200,000
 6,400,000
 6,600,000
 6,800,000
 7,000,000
 7,200,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

57.0%
57.5%
58.0%
58.5%
59.0%
59.5%
60.0%
60.5%
61.0%

 -
 500,000

 1,000,000
 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000
 3,500,000
 4,000,000
 4,500,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,869,148$  10,423,670$  10,826,138$  -$                   10,826,138$  60.6% 10,749,939$  59.5%
Use Tax 4,513,154       2,632,673       2,772,867       -                     2,772,867       61.4% 2,901,694       60.2%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,656,600       966,350          876,397          -                     876,397          52.9% 928,581          60.5%
Licenses and Permits 260,000          151,667          196,694          -                     196,694          75.7% 205,433          79.0%
Intergovernmental 629,000          366,917          353,406          -                     353,406          56.2% 396,459          54.4%
Charges for Services 539,900          314,942          320,497          -                     320,497          59.4% 358,509          62.3%
Court Costs 193,900          113,108          75,373            -                     75,373            38.9% 106,968          57.8%
Police/Traffic Fines 393,300          229,425          132,462          -                     132,462          33.7% 201,159          59.3%
Parking Fines 45,300            26,425            28,105            -                     28,105            62.0% 29,495            57.4%
Other Fines 66,000            38,500            29,952            -                     29,952            45.4% 35,320            55.9%
Investment Income 150,000          87,500            1,163,252       -                     1,163,252       775.5% 1,934,691       91.5%
Miscellaneous Income 863,824          503,897          692,651          -                     692,651          80.2% 632,237          55.5%
Transfers In 6,549,579       3,820,588       3,820,604       -                     3,820,604       58.3% 3,827,388       58.3%

Total 33,729,705$  19,675,662$  21,288,399$  -$                   21,288,399$  63.1% 22,307,873$  61.2%

Expenditures:
General Government 10,094,553$  5,888,489$     5,136,410$     129,192$      5,265,602$     52.2% 4,801,449$     53.4%
Public Safety 18,392,539     10,728,981     10,664,631     197,356        10,861,987     59.1% 9,896,044       58.0%
Street 2,180,609       1,272,022       1,157,915       (16,117)         1,141,798       52.4% 1,034,943       53.5%
Culture and Recreation 3,820,555       2,228,657       2,024,946       21,821          2,046,767       53.6% 1,945,458       54.4%
Transfers Out 4,787,466       2,792,689       3,072,706       -                     3,072,706       64.2% 2,443,664       58.3%
Reserves 1,225,200       714,700          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 40,500,922$  23,625,538$  22,056,608$  332,252$      22,388,860$  55.3% 20,121,558$  56.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 5,555,372$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (768,209)         

Ending Fund Balance 4,787,163$    

58% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,742,581$     3,933,172$     3,835,232$  -$                   3,835,232$     56.9% 3,581,067$     58.7%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds 83,000,000     48,416,667     -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             17,500             106,464        -                      106,464          354.9% 135,701          99.7%

Total 89,772,581$  52,367,339$  3,941,696$  -$                   3,941,696$    4.4% 3,716,768$    58.3%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 3,177,550$     1,853,571$     1,788,134$  1,256,919$  3,045,053$     95.8% 2,931,402$     99.2%
Wastewater Maint 993,617          579,610          534,145        8,499             542,644          54.6% 473,690          57.0%
BMA Expenses 1,500,000       875,000          -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Transfers Out 1,836,183       1,071,107       1,071,113     -                      1,071,113       58.3% 960,740          58.3%
Reserves 97,138             56,664             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 7,604,488$    4,435,952$    3,393,392$  1,265,418$  4,658,810$    61.3% 4,365,832$    80.4%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,925,118$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 548,304        

Ending Fund Balance 3,473,422$  

58% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  6,469,832$     6,949,418$     -$                    6,949,418$     62.7% 6,346,030$     60.3%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       0.0%
Debt Proceeds 7,500,000       4,375,000       -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       4,807               -                       4,807               N.A. 2,293               0.3%

Total 18,591,140$  10,844,832$  6,954,225$    -$                    6,954,225$    37.4% 6,348,323$    55.6%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 4,094,740$     2,388,598$     2,130,723$     64,976$         2,195,699$     53.6% 2,120,749$     57.5%
Water Administration 465,954          271,807          240,481          57,890            298,371          64.0% 253,133          61.4%
Water Distribution 2,373,912       1,384,782       1,172,548       48,243            1,220,791       51.4% 976,016          50.7%
BMA Expenses 10,775,784     6,285,874       1,910,542       306,009         2,216,551       20.6% 1,729,563       42.7%
Transfers Out 2,878,743       1,679,267       1,679,273       -                       1,679,273       58.3% 1,508,085       58.3%
Reserves 252,659          147,384          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 20,841,792$  12,157,712$  7,133,567$    477,118$       7,610,685$    36.5% 6,587,547$    52.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,688,787$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (179,342)         

Ending Fund Balance 7,509,445$    

58% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,626,914$     3,865,700$     3,944,596$       -$                   3,944,596$     59.5% 3,605,463$     58.3%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 56,334            45,669            19,103               -                     19,103            33.9% 79,944            57.8%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,683,248$    3,911,369$    3,963,699$       -$                   3,963,699$    59.3% 3,685,407$    58.2%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,825,601$     2,231,601$     2,013,476$       262,080$      2,275,556$     59.5% 2,076,689$     58.8%
Transfers Out 2,684,272       1,565,825       1,565,832         -                     1,565,832       58.3% 1,545,680       58.3%
Reserves 140,718          82,086            -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,650,591$    3,879,512$    3,579,308$       262,080$     3,841,388$    57.8% 3,622,369$    58.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 261,319$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 384,391             

Ending Fund Balance 645,710$          

58% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,881,469     1,133,259    60%
E-911 Fund 1,366,836     862,203       63%
Special Library Fund 88,000          137,167       156%
Special Museum Fund -                     12,258          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     431,462       N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     4,000            N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 91,320          24,138          26%
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                     800               N/A
CDBG-COVID 485,000        49,032          10%
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
Opioid Settlement Fund 364,814        304,814       84%
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,400            1,181            49%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     4,030,725    82%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,371,537     2,344,726    70%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     14,000          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     1,345            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,155,714     599,489       52%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 71,179          41,524          58%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 95,013          55,428          58%
Municipal Airport Operating 526,200        340,354       65%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 132,951        84,227          63%
Health Insurance Fund 5,530,171     3,773,405    68%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          96,958          129%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,550,943     904,718       58%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,057,005     5,221,708    65%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

58% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,708,341     2,384,749    42%
E-911 Fund 1,487,474     789,480        53%
Special Library Fund 202,000        50,704          25%
Special Museum Fund 25,100           12,264          49%
Municipal Airport Fund 1,223,924     1,187,819    97%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 375,860        16,978          5%
Restricted Revenue Fund 306,262        88,704          29%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 46,253           22,200          48%
CDBG-COVID 485,000        64,847          13%
ARPA 500,000        291,670        58%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804           -                     0%
Opioid Settlement Fund 364,814        120,000        33%
Neighborhood Park Fund 62,723           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 15,009           -                     0%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     1,682,460    34%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 9,388,897     2,138,029    23%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 87,205           10,017          11%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 584,032        -                     0%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 227,358        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,093           -                     0%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431        326,564        100%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        10,000          3%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494        503,075        96%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 3,223,984     2,317,953    72%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,337,154     1,275,800    20%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,265,657     733,759        58%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 78,002           37,844          49%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 92,382           43,774          47%
Municipal Airport Operating 706,086        433,278        61%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        76,001          18%
Health Insurance Fund 5,531,208     3,786,748    68%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        98,817          22%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 14,776,368   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 20,453,000   3,729,425    18%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,515             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

58% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,982,024                 (823,241)      3,158,783     
E-911 Fund 212,689                    75,137          287,826        
Special Library Fund 338,451                    87,884          426,335        
Special Museum Fund 163,780                    (6)                  163,774        
Municipal Airport Fund -                                 119,148        119,148        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 435,622                    (12,953)         422,669        
Restricted Revenue Fund 259,665                    16,615          276,280        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 49,914                       (21,194)         28,720           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,732,952                 (291,670)      1,441,282     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804                       -                     14,804           
Opioid Settlement Fund -                                 304,814        304,814        
Neighborhood Park Fund 64,343                       -                     64,343           
Cemetery Care Fund 13,038                       1,181            14,219           

Debt Service Fund 3,610,645                 2,348,265    5,958,910     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,360,355                 401,836        6,762,191     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 140,792                    7,433            148,225        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 397,676                    (9,037)           388,639        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 180,119                    47,880          227,999        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 59,177                       1,345            60,522           
Community Development Block Grant Fund 211,387                    -                     211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885                         -                     3,885             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386                       -                     31,386           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    (298,434)      28,997           
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 350,641                    -                     350,641        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    (333,041)      193,453        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 3,112,203                 (1,197,830)   1,914,373     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,564,913                 (943,368)      5,621,545     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 136,622                    (133,168)      3,454             
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 40,167                       2,890            43,057           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 54,603                       11,564          66,167           
Municipal Airport Operating 431,254                    (77,958)         353,296        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 321,209                    15,646          336,855        
Health Insurance Fund 3,001                         6,657            9,658             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 496,502                    17,017          513,519        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 13,225,425               904,718        14,130,143   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 21,349,355               2,729,108    24,078,463   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,709                         -                     8,709             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

58% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 7.h.i.



INV-1 
 
G:\PROJECTS\2023067_Madison Boulevard Reconstruction_Tuxedo to Water Tower\PLANS\Final 
Plans\SPECS\3_Invitation for Bids.docx       

  
(Published in Bartlesville, OK Examiner-Enterprise 2/1/2025, 2/5/2025, & 2/8/2025) 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

 
City of Bartlesville 

Madison Boulevard Reconstruction from Tuxedo to Water Tower 
Bid No. 2024-2025-013 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Bartlesville will receive sealed bids at the office of the City Clerk 
until 2:00 p.m. on the 24th day of February, 2025 at such time bids will be opened and publicly read. 
 
The project consists of furnishing all materials, labor, and expenses necessary to construct the project as 
called for in the plans and specifications on file in the Engineering Department, 3rd Floor, City Hall, 401 S. 
Johnstone, Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003, (918) 338-4251.  Plans, specifications, and contract documents 
may be examined in this office and are available at a nonrefundable charge of $25.00 or they can be 
requested and received via email at no charge (kdtoulou@cityofbartlesville.org). 
 
No documents will be mailed until payment is received in full. 
 
A mandatory pre-bid conference will be held on February 10th, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. in the City Hall, 3rd 
Floor Conference Room, 401 S. Johnstone, Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 
 
The major work on the project shall consist of the following: 

1,022 
2,047 

TON 
TON 

Superpave Type S3 (PG 64-22 OK) 
Superpave Type S4 (PG 64-22 OK) 

1,523 CY Unclassified Excavation 
6,512 SY Removal of Asphalt Pavement 
5,185 LF Combined Curb and Gutter (6” Barrier) 

 
Proposals shall be submitted in sealed envelopes and marked, “City Clerk, City Hall, 401 S. Johnstone, 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003, Madison Boulevard Reconstruction from Tuxedo to Water Tower, Bid No. 
2024-2025-013”. Proposals shall be accompanied by a five percent (5%) bid guarantee. 
 
Each Bidder must deposit with his Bid, security in the amount, form, and subject to the conditions provided in 
the Information for Bidders. All Bids must be made on the required Bid form and Bidder shall be a record plan 
holder with the City. 
 
The Owner reserves the right to waive any informality or to reject any or all Bids and select the lowest and 
best bid. 
  
Bids received more than ninety-six (96) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays) before the time 
set for receiving bids as well as bids received after the time set for receipt of bids will not be considered, and 
will be returned unopened. No Bidder may withdraw his Bid within 30 days after the actual date of the opening 
thereof. 
 
DATED this 29th day of January, 2025. 
 
                                __________________________ 
                                                                                                                                            City Clerk 
   
                                                                                                                    By: __________________________ 
                                                                                                                                            Deputy Clerk  

Jason Muninger

Kim Toulouse

Agenda Item 7.h.ii.



Agenda Item #___ 
2/26/2025 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-012 for the Yale Drive Reconstruction 
Project. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
CEC Bid Award Recommendation 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project is a priority project included in the 2022 issuance of the voter-approved 2020 
General Obligation Bond (GO Bond).  The project consists of reconstructing Yale Drive from 
Adams Boulevard to Frank Phillips Boulevard, including Yale Place from Adams Boulevard to 
Yale Drive. The project will consist of removing the existing concrete while salvaging the curb 
and gutter and reconstructing with an asphalt paving section.  Yale Drive currently has speed 
humps that will be reconstructed as well.  All items of work were included in the Base Bid with 
no Bid Alternates.  

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, seven (7) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and six (6) 
contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Four (4) contractors submitted a bid.  The 
base bids were as follows: 

 

    KSL Dirtworks, LLC (Bartlesville, OK)    $572,306.06 

Tri-Star Construction (Tulsa, OK)     $623,000.00 

Brent Bell Construction (Nowata, OK)    $782,216.80 

Core Civil Construction (Collinsville, OK)    $987,266.00 

       

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Each bid 
had all of the necessary components and was mathematically correct.    

 

8.



 

C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

$850,000.00 was originally budgeted for the project in the 2020 GO Bond.  $53,855.00 has been 
spent to date on design fees, leaving $761,145.00 remaining for construction.  The lowest 
compliant bid by KSL Dirtworks, LLC of $572,306.06 is $223,838.94 under the remaining 
budget. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

KSL Dirtworks, LLC is a local construction contractor who specializes in concrete and asphalt 
roadway and utility work.  They have completed projects successfully for the City of 
Bartlesville in the past and have provided information confirming they have the bonding 
capacity and technical expertise to complete this project and our design consultant, CEC, has 
provided a bid award recommendation in favor of awarding to KSL Dirtworks, LLC. 

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to KSL Dirtworks, LLC in the amount of $572,306.06.   

 
 
 
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 

/s/ Trevor Dorsey February 26, 2025



ITEM

NO.

SPEC.

NO.
DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST UNIT COST TOTAL COST UNIT COST TOTAL COST UNIT COST TOTAL COST UNIT COST TOTAL COST

1 201(A) CLEARING AND GRUBBING LSUM 1 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     12,500.00$          12,500.00$                     15,000.00$          15,000.00$                     110.21$               110.21$                          3,800.00$            3,800.00$                      

2 202(A) UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION CY 1,386 40.00$                 55,440.00$                     50.00$                 69,300.00$                     51.00$                 70,686.00$                     24.33$                 33,721.38$                     18.00$                 24,948.00$                    

3 220 SWPPP DOCUMENTATION AND MANAGEMENT LSUM 1 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     3,500.00$            3,500.00$                       8,000.00$            8,000.00$                       567.69$               567.69$                          750.00$               750.00$                         

4 221(D) TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTER EA 13 500.00$               6,500.00$                       400.00$               5,200.00$                       250.00$               3,250.00$                       435.33$               5,659.29$                       100.00$               1,300.00$                      

5 230(A) SOLID SLAB SODDING SY 1,767 8.00$                    14,136.00$                     7.30$                    12,899.10$                     10.00$                 17,670.00$                     7.66$                    13,535.22$                     4.05$                    7,156.35$                      

6 303(A) AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A CY 1,386 65.00$                 90,090.00$                     74.00$                 102,564.00$                   70.00$                 97,020.00$                     47.17$                 65,377.62$                     67.00$                 92,862.00$                    

7 310(B) SUBGRADE METHOD B SY 8,311 4.00$                    33,244.00$                     2.50$                    20,777.50$                     5.00$                    41,555.00$                     2.45$                    20,361.95$                     2.00$                    16,622.00$                    

8 325 SEPARATOR FABRIC SY 10,080 3.00$                    30,240.00$                     1.95$                    19,656.00$                     3.00$                    30,240.00$                     1.77$                    17,841.60$                     1.40$                    14,112.00$                    

9 411(B) SUPERPAVE, TYPE S3 (PG 64-22 OK) TON 2,082 115.00$               239,430.00$                   120.60$               251,089.20$                   125.00$               260,250.00$                   95.79$                 199,434.78$                   105.00$               218,610.00$                  

10 411(D) SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4 (PG 64-22 OK) TON 694 150.00$               104,100.00$                   121.50$               84,321.00$                     140.00$               97,160.00$                     115.91$               80,441.54$                     115.00$               79,810.00$                    

11 411(M) 22" ASPHALT SPEED HUMP EA 3 4,500.00$            13,500.00$                     3,000.00$            9,000.00$                       1,500.00$            4,500.00$                       3,355.65$            10,066.95$                     4,000.00$            12,000.00$                    

12 609(B) COMBINED CURB AND GUTTER (6" BARRIER) LF 205 40.00$                 8,200.00$                       47.25$                 9,686.25$                       35.00$                 7,175.00$                       52.33$                 10,727.65$                     50.00$                 10,250.00$                    

13 610(A) CONCRETE SIDEWALK (4") SY 18 100.00$               1,800.00$                       68.25$                 1,228.50$                       95.00$                 1,710.00$                       177.95$               3,203.10$                       75.00$                 1,350.00$                      

14 612(A) MANHOLE ADJUSTED TO GRADE (PUBLIC) EA 4 1,500.00$            6,000.00$                       1,100.00$            4,400.00$                       1,500.00$            6,000.00$                       923.91$               3,695.64$                       1,030.00$            4,120.00$                      

15 619(A) REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS LSUM 1 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     15,000.00$          15,000.00$                     10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     110.21$               110.21$                          1,700.00$            1,700.00$                      

16 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT SY 8,261 15.00$                 123,915.00$                   10.00$                 82,610.00$                     25.00$                 206,525.00$                   6.54$                    54,026.94$                     5.00$                    41,305.00$                    

17 619(B) REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER LF 205 25.00$                 5,125.00$                       15.75$                 3,228.75$                       25.00$                 5,125.00$                       8.89$                    1,822.45$                       12.00$                 2,460.00$                      

18 619(B) REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 18 20.00$                 360.00$                          36.75$                 661.50$                          50.00$                 900.00$                          49.75$                 895.50$                          20.00$                 360.00$                         

19 641 MOBILIZATION EA 1 75,000.00$          75,000.00$                     30,000.00$          30,000.00$                     60,000.00$          60,000.00$                     5,510.50$            5,510.50$                       47,064.65$          47,064.65$                    

20 642 CONSTRUCTION STAKING LEVEL II EA 1 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     5,000.00$            5,000.00$                       5,000.00$            5,000.00$                       2,838.44$            2,838.44$                       2,750.00$            2,750.00$                      

21 855(A) TRAFFIC STRIPE (12" WIDE) (PLASTIC) LF 450 12.00$                 5,400.00$                       12.60$                 5,670.00$                       10.00$                 4,500.00$                       16.53$                 7,438.50$                       12.60$                 5,670.00$                      

22 880(J) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL LSUM 1 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     8,925.00$            8,925.00$                       10,000.00$          10,000.00$                     9,918.90$            9,918.90$                       9,000.00$            9,000.00$                      

23 SPECIAL ENGINEER'S ALLOWANCE LSUM 1 25,000.00$          25,000.00$                     25,000.00$          25,000.00$                     25,000.00$          25,000.00$                     25,000.00$          25,000.00$                     25,000.00$          25,000.00$                    

887,480.00$               782,216.80$               987,266.00$               572,306.06$              623,000.00$               

JACOB CAMPBELL, P.E. CITY ENGINEER

Bid No.: 2024-2025-012

RECOMMENDED:

Brent Bell Construction, LLC Core Civil Construction, LLC KSL Dirtworks, LLC Tri-Star Construction

Bid Opening: 2/21/2025

BASE BID-ROADWAY

PROJECT TOTAL =

Engineer's Estimate

BID TABULATION

Yale Drive Reconstruction: Bartlesville, OK

COB CABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB MPBELL, P.E.

2-26-25

2.26.2025



 

WWW.CONNECTCEC.COM 

1300 S. MAIN STREET / TULSA, OK 74137/ PHONE:  918.663.9401 / FAX:  918.663.9404 

 

N:\Municipal\Projects\Bartlesville - Yale Drive Reconstruction\Construction\Bidding\Bartlesville - Yale Dr Reconstruction Award 

Recommendation.doc 

February 26, 2025 

 

City of Bartlesville 

401 S. Johnstone Ave. 

Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 

Attention: Micah Siemers 

 

RE: Bid No.: 2024-2025-012  

Project name: Yale Drive Reconstruction 

 

Bids for the above-mentioned project were received and opened publicly on February 21, 2025. There 

were four bids received, with pricing ranging from $572,306.06 (low) to $987,266.00 (highest).  Basis of 

Award was Total Roadway Bid.  

 

The apparent low bidder is KSL Dirtworks, LLC for the Basis of Award with a Total Roadway Bid of 

$572,306.06.  KSL Dirtworks’ bid was 35.51% below the Engineer’s Estimate of $887,480.00 for the Total 

Roadway Bid.   

 

We recommend KSL Dirtworks, LLC be awarded the contract for the Total Roadway Bid in the amount of 

$572,306.06.  

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

 

      

 

Jacob Campbell, P.E. 

CEC Corporation 

CA #32, Exp 06/30/26                                   

 

 

 



Agenda Item #___ 
2/26/2025 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-013 for the Madison Boulevard 
Reconstruction Project. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Delaware Tribe Agreement 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project is a priority project included in the 2023 issuance of the voter-approved 2020 
General Obligation Bond (GO Bond).  The project consists of reconstructing Madison Boulevard 
from Tuxedo Boulevard to the water tower located approximately ½ mile north of Tuxedo 
Boulevard.  The existing roadway is a narrow, asphalt road with open ditches that does not meet 
current City of Bartlesville roadway standards. The project will consist of removing the existing 
roadway and reconstructing with widened, 33’ wide, asphalt street with concrete curb and gutter.  
Designated left turn lanes will be included at the Ohio intersection and the Tuxedo intersection 
will provide a left turn lane and a thru/right turn lane for southbound traffic.  All items of work 
were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates.  

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, seven (7) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and attended the 
mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Five (5) contractors submitted a bid.  The base bids were as follows: 

 

    KSL Dirtworks, LLC (Bartlesville, OK)    $1,080,345.43 

Brent Bell Construction (Nowata, OK)    $1,127,279.65 

Core Civil Construction (Collinsville, OK)    $1,162,451.93 

Tri-Star Construction (Tulsa, OK)     $1,180,000.00 

Gradeline Construction (Tulsa, OK)     $1,507,169.90 

       

9.



The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Each bid 
had all of the necessary components and was mathematically correct.    

C. BUDGET AMOUNT:

The budget for this project includes multiple funding sources.  The original budget for the 
project approved in the 2020 GO Bond was for $225,000.  The project was originally planned to 
consist of a heavy overlay with edge level-up similar to what was done on Minnesota between 
US 75 and Madison Boulevard a couple of years ago.  In 2023, the Delaware Tribe came to the 
City of Bartlesville with plans to further develop their property on the west side of Madison 
Boulevard, north of Tuxedo.  The plans for that development would require platting which 
would trigger their responsibility to improve the west side of Madison Boulevard along their 
property frontage.  Since the City already had plans to make some improvements to Madison, an 
additional $500,000 was identified in the Capital Reserve Fund to supplement the original 
$225,000 GO Bond funding to be able to reconstruct the east side of Madison Boulevard.  
Rather than having the Delaware Tribe do their work before City funding was available, the 
City entered into an agreement with the Delaware Tribe in November, 2023, to provide half of 
the cost of the roadway reconstruction based upon a construction estimate provided by their 
design consultant.  The agreement was that the Delaware Tribe’s share would not exceed 
$900,000 and would be based upon the cost once the project was bid.  Thus, the total available 
budget is $1,450,000 if we use the City’s $725,000 as half of the project cost and the Delaware 
Tribe covers the other half.  While the Tribe agreed to pay up to $900,000, staff believed the 
original estimate was high and that it would not exceed more than the $1.45MM total available 
if using the City’s budgeted amount.  The lowest compliant bid by KSL Dirtworks, LLC of 
$1,080,345.43 is $369,654.87 under the available budget.  Half of that would be savings 
towards the Delaware Tribe and half would be savings towards City funding so it is $184,827.43 
under the available City budget. 

Staff will reach out to the Delaware Tribe to begin the process of receiving their share of the 
project cost upon award of the contract. 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION

KSL Dirtworks, LLC is a local construction contractor who specializes in concrete and asphalt
roadway and utility work.  They have completed projects successfully for the City of
Bartlesville in the past and have provided information confirming they have the bonding
capacity and technical expertise to complete this project.

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to KSL Dirtworks, LLC in the amount of
$1,080,345.43.

   
  Council Member Date 

/s/
Type text here 2/26/25 Trevor Dorsey



Page 1

ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION OF PAY ITEM UNIT BID 

PRICE
TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

UNIT BID 
PRICE

TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

UNIT BID 
PRICE

TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

UNIT BID 
PRICE

TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

UNIT BID 
PRICE

TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

1,022.00 TON 2.0" TYPE "S4" (PG 64-22 OK) 90.66$         92,654.52$        101.50$         103,733.00$        105.25$       107,565.50$     101.00$         103,222.00$        102.25$           104,499.50$        
2,047.00 TON 4.0" TYPE "S3" (PG 64-22 OK) 87.35$         178,805.45$      98.50$           201,629.50$        93.25$         190,882.75$     98.00$           200,606.00$        90.50$             185,253.50$        
1,737.00 CY 6.0" ODOT TYPE 'A' AGGREGATE BASE 45.97$         79,849.89$        42.75$           74,256.75$          50.00$         86,850.00$       51.00$           88,587.00$          75.00$             130,275.00$        

10,500.00 SY 8.0" SUBGRADE METHOD B 1.54$           16,170.00$        1.75$             18,375.00$          2.00$           21,000.00$       1.75$             18,375.00$          2.25$  23,625.00$          
12,405.00 SY SEPARATOR FABRIC 1.37$           16,994.85$        1.52$             18,855.60$          2.00$           24,810.00$       1.30$             16,126.50$          1.50$  18,607.50$          

686 GAL TACK COAT 5.05$           3,464.30$          1.50$             1,029.00$            3.50$           2,401.00$         4.50$             3,087.00$            3.40$  2,332.40$            
5,185.00 LF COMBINED CURB & GUTTER 22.05$         114,329.25$      28.00$           145,180.00$        20.00$         103,700.00$     21.00$           108,885.00$        40.00$             207,400.00$        
2,658.00 SY 5’ SIDEWALK 41.09$         109,217.22$      56.00$           148,848.00$        54.00$         143,532.00$     74.00$           196,692.00$        80.00$             212,640.00$        

61 LF 43 ¾” X 26 5/8” ARCP 129.09$       7,874.49$          205.00$         12,505.00$          250.00$       15,250.00$       225.00$         13,725.00$          280.00$           17,080.00$          
1 EA FLARED END SECTION FOR 43 ¾” X 26 5/8” ARCP 2,488.04$    2,488.04$          2,750.00$      2,750.00$            3,000.00$    3,000.00$         3,950.00$      3,950.00$            3,075.00$        3,075.00$            
1 EA STANDARD CURB INLET 25’ OPENING 19,430.77$  19,430.77$        26,000.00$    26,000.00$          17,250.00$  17,250.00$       20,200.00$    20,200.00$          24,000.00$      24,000.00$          
1 EA STANDARD CURB INLET 33’ OPENING 23,462.25$  23,462.25$        31,000.00$    31,000.00$          21,250.00$  21,250.00$       24,600.00$    24,600.00$          25,000.00$      25,000.00$          

1,523.00 CY UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 67.63$         103,000.49$      20.00$           30,460.00$          10.00$         15,230.00$       10.00$           15,230.00$          30.00$             45,690.00$          
1,867.00 CY UNCLASSIFIED BORROW + 20% 1.10$           2,053.70$          30.00$           56,010.00$          10.00$         18,670.00$       6.60$             12,322.20$          36.00$             67,212.00$          

344 CY EXCESS EXCAVATION 71.78$         24,692.32$        5.00$             1,720.00$            25.00$         8,600.00$         35.00$           12,040.00$          30.00$             10,320.00$          
6,512.00 SY REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT 2.89$           18,819.68$        5.00$             32,560.00$          15.00$         97,680.00$       2.50$             16,280.00$          15.00$             97,680.00$          

110 LF REMOVAL OF EXISTING PIPE 9.30$           1,023.00$          5.00$             550.00$  25.00$         2,750.00$         21.50$           2,365.00$            20.00$             2,200.00$            
198 LF REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER 4.61$           912.78$             10.00$           1,980.00$            15.00$         2,970.00$         3.50$             693.00$  8.00$  1,584.00$            

5 EA REMOVE AND RESET EXISTING SIGNS 303.08$       1,515.40$          275.00$         1,375.00$            525.00$       2,625.00$         290.00$         1,450.00$            300.00$           1,500.00$            
46 LF REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK 10.80$         496.80$             10.00$           460.00$  25.00$         1,150.00$         3.00$             138.00$  20.00$             920.00$  

18,405.00 SY SOLID SLAB SODDING 4.35$           80,061.75$        3.95$             72,699.75$          4.15$           76,380.75$       4.75$             87,423.75$          3.95$  72,699.75$          
2,025.00 LF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE 2.66$           5,386.50$          2.95$             5,973.75$            3.10$           6,277.50$         3.10$             6,277.50$            3.50$  7,087.50$            

2 EA ROCK BAG BARRIER 886.54$       1,773.08$          500.00$         1,000.00$            250.00$       500.00$            225.00$         450.00$  350.00$           700.00$  
30 SY 12” RIPRAP W/ FILTER FABRIC MAT 71.15$         2,134.50$          34.00$           1,020.00$            85.00$         2,550.00$         72.00$           2,160.00$            80.00$             2,400.00$            

1 LS TYPE A SALVAGED TOPSOIL 36,047.88$  36,047.88$        12,500.00$    12,500.00$          15,000.00$  15,000.00$       26,182.55$    26,182.55$          15,000.00$      15,000.00$          
1 LS CLEARING & GRUBBING 17,744.07$  17,744.07$        15,000.00$    15,000.00$          15,000.00$  15,000.00$       29,500.00$    29,500.00$          20,000.00$      20,000.00$          
1 LS TRAFFIC CONTROL 23,364.52$  23,364.52$        14,000.00$    14,000.00$          13,471.75$  13,471.75$       14,700.00$    14,700.00$          30,000.00$      30,000.00$          
1 LS MOBILIZATION 16,917.24$  16,917.24$        16,659.30$    16,659.30$          56,456.93$  56,456.93$       84,000.00$    84,000.00$          100,000.00$    100,000.00$        
1 LS CONSTRUCTION STAKING LEVEL II 14,327.30$  14,327.30$        15,000.00$    15,000.00$          15,000.00$  15,000.00$       4,900.00$      4,900.00$            15,000.00$      15,000.00$          
1 LS SWPPP DOCUMENTATION AND MANAGEMENT 551.05$       551.05$             4,500.00$      4,500.00$            5,000.00$    5,000.00$         5,700.00$      5,700.00$            3,000.00$        3,000.00$            
1 EA ENGINEER’S ALLOWANCE 50,000.00$  50,000.00$        50,000.00$    50,000.00$          50,000.00$  50,000.00$       50,000.00$    50,000.00$          50,000.00$      50,000.00$          

210 LF 4” DOTTED WHITE LANE LINE 2.20$           462.00$             2.00$             420.00$  3.65$           766.50$            2.10$             441.00$  2.15$  451.50$  
505 LF 4” SOLID WHITE LANE LINE 2.20$           1,111.00$          2.00$             1,010.00$            3.65$           1,843.25$         2.10$             1,060.50$            2.15$  1,085.75$            

2,410.00 LF 4” SOLID DOUBLE YELLOW LANE LINE 2.76$           6,651.60$          2.00$             4,820.00$            3.65$           8,796.50$         2.10$             5,061.00$            2.15$  5,181.50$            
100 LF PEDESTRIAN CROSSING LANE 24.25$         2,425.00$          12.00$           1,200.00$            36.75$         3,675.00$         12.60$           1,260.00$            13.00$             1,300.00$            

8 EA SOLID WHITE TURNING LANE ARROW 275.53$       2,204.24$          200.00$         1,600.00$            341.25$       2,730.00$         210.00$         1,680.00$            215.00$           1,720.00$            
50 LF STOP LINE 38.57$         1,928.50$          12.00$           600.00$  36.75$         1,837.50$         12.60$           630.00$  13.00$             650.00$  

TOTAL 1,080,345.43$   1,127,279.65$     1,162,451.93$  1,180,000.00$     1,507,169.90$     

KSL Dirtworks Brent Bell Construction Tri-Star ConstructionCore Civil Construction Gradeline Construction



ext here
Tre







s/



/



The update information will be provided at the meeting. 

Agenda Item 10.



The presentation will be provided at the meeting. 

Agenda Item 11.


	City Council Agenda March 3, 2025
	Agenda Item 7.a.i. City Council Minutes February 3, 2025
	Agenda Item 7.a.ii. City Council Special Meeting Minutes February 21, 2025
	Agenda Item 7.a.iii. City Council Special Workshop Meeting Minutes February 24, 2025
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Appointment of Dennis Halpin to the Bartlesville Film Authority
	Agenda Item 7.c.i. Resolution amending FY 24-25 Budget for Golf Course Memorial Fund
	Agenda Item 7.d.i. Software License Agreement with Library and Springshare LLC
	Agenda Item 7.d.ii. Contract with BTC Broadband and Library
	Agenda Item 7.d.iii. Staff report for PS_amendment 1 with Brown Engineers for VFD replacement
	Staff report for PS_amendment 1 with Brown Engineers for VFD replacement
	Agenda Item ___
	I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND
	II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS
	IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

	BTL-007 Contract amendment

	Agenda Item 7.d.iv. City-County Grant for GIS Mapping
	Agenda Item 7.e.i. Council Cover Letter K-9 Atlas
	Agenda Item 7.f.i. Bartlesville NEXT Report - Jan 2025
	Jan 25

	Agenda Item 7.g.i. Jan 2025 Financials
	Jan 2025 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P7 January 2025 Financials
	P7 January 2025 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 7.h.i. Bid No. 2024-2025-012 Yale Bid Invitation
	Agenda Item 7.h.ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-013 Madison Bid Invitation
	Agenda Item 8. BID REVIEW_Yale Reconstruction
	Agenda Item 9. BID REVIEW_Madison Reconstruction
	Agenda Item 10. The update information will be provided at the meeting
	Agenda Item 11. Information for Item 11

